From: Soil & Water Conservation Program

To: Soil & Water Conservation Program; DNR.Soil and Water Conservation Districts staff
Cc: DNR.MGS SWC Staff

Subject: FW: Conservation Planner Recertification Guidance

Date: Wednesday, November 8, 2023 8:44:20 AM

Attachments: Conservation Planner Recertification Guidance 2023.pdf

Conservation Planner Continuing Education Contact Hours Tracker.xIsx

Good morning,

Please see the email from NRCS on guidance for conservation planner recertification.

Thank you,

Soil & Water Conservation Program
Phone 573-751-4932

We’d like your feedback on the service you received from the Missouri Department of Natural Resources. Please consider
taking a few minutes to complete the department’s Customer Satisfaction Survey at

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/MoDNRsurvey. Thank you.

From: Mascaro, Selma - FPAC-NRCS, MO <selma.mascaro@usda.gov>

Sent: Monday, November 6, 2023 7:27 AM

To: ug-MO-nrcs <mo-nrcs@usda.gov>

Cc: Plassmeyer, Jim <jim.plassmeyer@dnr.mo.gov>; Potter, Lisa - FPAC-NRCS, MO
<lisa.potter@usda.gov>; Andrew White <awhite@quailforever.org>; Casey Bergthold

<cbergthold@ducks.org>

Subject: Conservation Planner Recertification Guidance

Conservation Planners-

In the next 14 months many conservation planner designations will be up for recertification. Thisis a
summary of the requirements for recertification and the process to document recertification in
Aglearn.

National policy for conservation planner designations, requirements, and recertification criteria is
located in the General Manual Title 180 Part 409 Conservation Planning Policy. The review process
for recertification (covered in Section E.) is done at least once every 3 years and is intended to
demonstrate that the planner has maintained or improved their knowledge, skills, and abilities for
their designation level. Recertification now includes completing a minimum of 40 contact hours of
continuing education during the 3 year cycle. Contact hours must be related to conservation
planning, conservation practices, or new conservation technology. This requirement applies to all
levels of certified conservation planners (Level I-1V). For more information on contact hours and a
full list of eligible activities see Part 409 Section E.(6) Continuing Education Requirements in the
General Manual Title 180.

Missouri supplement to the General Manual further defines requirements for certification and
recertification, including the requirement for Level lll planners to submit 2 conservation plans for
review at the time of recertification, in addition to the continuing education requirements. This
review is documented on the MO CONS-2.

Supervisors are responsible for review of the conservation plans and review of continuing education
credits. Planners are responsible for maintaining their individual planner designation, including
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Conservation Planner Recertification Documentation in Aglearn
Supporting items required for upload:

All Certified Planner Levels: Continuing Education Contact Hours Tracker spreadsheet
e Verified by Supervisor
e 40 contact hours minimum with at least 5 hours of outreach
Level lll Certified Planners: contact hour tracker spreadsheet + 2 conservation plan reviews
documented on MO CONS-2

Level Il Certified Planners: 12 contact hours of the required 40 contact hours directly
related to specialty

1. Recertification should show up in your Current Learning on your homepage/dashboard (blue circle).
If it is not there go to section 2 first.
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Click on “Add evidence item”
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Enter the Evidence Name, Description, add the file by “clicking” the file attachement icon, enter the date
and “click” ENABLE!

New Certification evidence item
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Once upload of the Tracker and both MO CONS-2 is completed, take the quiz, and print/saved a copy of
the recertification for proof.





If you are missing the Recertification link on your Dashboard (as shown below), the course will need
to be added manually by the employee in their IDP.

CURRENT LEARNING

Managing For Excellence
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If you have created your IDP and it is approved, additions can be made that will need supervisor
approval. If you have not created your IDP, add the recertificaiton course based on your expiration date

in Aglearn.

Review the completed learning in Aglearn for the date certification is completed. Certification last for 3
years from the completed date in Aglearn. Recertification must be compelted before the 3 year
expiration of the completed date in Aglearn. For this example, recertification must be completed before

February 23, 2024.
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To add the Recertification Course to an IDP, start a new IDP or if a current approved IDP exist, navigate to
“Courses” and Add course.
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m your learning plan are shown below. You can view any course by clicking the course title. Clicking "Add courses” will allow you to request to add new courses to this learning
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Enter in the NHQ code (Level Il pictured), select the course and save. The item will now be added to the

IDP and can follow the previous steps on uploading supporting documentation for certification
completion.
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Tracker

				Planner's Name:				Start Date of Recertification Cycle:

								End Date of 3-Year Recertification Cycle:

				Credited Contact Hour Subtotals		Contact Hour Category		Converted Contact Hours Earned		Limit/Restriction		List Range

				0		1 college or unit semester hour		45 Contact Hours		NA		College or unit semester hour

				0		1 college or unit quarter hour		30 Contact Hours		NA		College or unit quarter hour

				0		1 hour of professional-level coursework, webinar, seminar, or professional meeting, convention, or conference		1 Contact Hour for attending, 2 for presenting		For teaching, credit is only available for teaching the first presentation of a training program		Professional-level coursework/webinar/seminar or professional meeting/convention/conference

				0		Each published peer-reviewed paper or article in the planner's area of professional practice		10 Contact Hours		NA		Published peer-reviewed paper or article in the planner's area of professional practice

				0		Each published non-peer-reviewed paper or article in the planner's area of professional practice		5 contact Hours		NA		Published non-peer-reviewed paper or article in the planner's area of professional practice

				0		Active participation as an officer or a committee member in a scientific professional organization or society		2 Contact Hours		Per organization per year, creditable after 12 months in the role have been completed		Active participation as an officer or committee member in a scientific professional organization or society

				0		1 hour of conservation outreach activity		1 Contact Hour		6 hours per 3-year designation cycle		Conservation outreach activity

				0		1 hour of OJT provided by a discipline specialist		1 Contact Hour		10 hours per 3-year designation cycle		OJT provided by a discipline specialist

				0		1 hour reading current technical articles or books		1 Contact Hour		10 hours per 3-year designation cycle		Reading current technical articles or books

				0		Courses and trainings completed to achieve a higher planner certification level		Contact Hours defined in AgLearn		NA		Courses and training completed to achieve a higher planner certification level

				0		TOTAL Contact Hours Earned (Target 40)



		#		Number of Converted Contact Hours Earned		Contact Hour Category 
Select the cell and then click the drop-down arrow on the right. Scroll up or down for more options.		Name of Training, Event, Publication, Etc.		Date Completed				Additional Information
Provide the sponsoring organization, location, duration, name of the instructor/mentor/speaker, and for OJT, the outcome of the event.
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&14Conservation Planner Continuing Education Contact Hours Tracker	


A continuing education contact hour is defined as 1 hour of instruction or presentation. The conversion of other units of credit to contact hours is provided in the NRCS General Manual, Title 180, Part 409, figure 409-1.		Page &P of &N         





keeping track of completed trainings on the AglLearn Conservation Planner Continuing Education
Contact Hours Tracker, maintaining supporting documentation of completed trainings (conference
agendas webinar titles, dates, speakers, etc.), and reviewing and updating their individual
development plan (IDP) in Aglearn. Questions regarding the validity of submitted contact hours
meeting the continuing education criteria laid out in Section E.(6) of policy, can be sent to the ARC,
who will confer with the SRC for final determination.

Aglearn is the official location to document conservation planner certification and recertification.
The Conservation Planner Continuing Education Contact Hours Tracker and MO CONS-2 must be
uploaded to Aglearn during the recertification process as Other Evidence, see attached guidance.

Questions regarding planner certification and recertification can be directed to your supervisor. For
your convenience a copy of the Conservation Planner Continuing Education Contact Hours Tracker is
attached, and is also available in AglLearn.

Selma Maseare

State Resource Conservationist

601 Business Loop 70 West, Suite 250
Columbia MO 65203

Phone (573)-876-9377

Cell (573) 234-0689

This electronic message contains information generated by the USDA solely for the intended
recipients. Any unauthorized interception of this message or the use or disclosure of the
information it contains may violate the law and subject the violator to civil or criminal
penalties. If you believe you have received this message in error, please notify the sender and
delete the email immediately.



